Wireless Communication Devices and Services for the 

Federal Aviation Administration Competition

Questions and Answers 

1) Pls. let me know what kind of units FAA looking for as to the pager in the RFP. In RFP FAA asked  for delivery confirmation on the units once the message is sent from sender to the  recipient . This function is only available on 2-way units. I know FAA has about 2500 units . but it is not clear whether they are  2-way or  one way pager. 

Response: The majority of our pagers are two-way.  This service will be required only for the two-way pagers.  The offeror must tell the government what types of devices will be available under their proposal.

2) As to network & coverage verification for 12 headquarter location . How would FAA like the carrier to provide  with the verification ?. Is coverage maps and transmitter location is sufficient at the time we submit the respond to the RFP/Prior to the award or do u wants us to provide you with the site survey.  In case of site survey we would need the contact person for all 12 location who could do a walk through with our technical team in order for us to provide FAA with real time result . appreciate all your assistance in this matter. 

Response:  The offeror must make the decision as to how this verification will be accomplished.  The actual verification must be verifiable.  The government has asked the offerors to provide their approach to this requirement, we do not intend to instruct you as to how to provide the response to our requirement.
3) "All  In One" pricing for paging . As a paging carrier our pricing r little different from cellular because of our  calling plan & coverage area. Is FAA is looking for 1 flat rate forservice which include all local , regional and national service or tier pricing ( i.e. local, regional. nationwide ) 

Response:  Section B of the SIR delineates pricing methodology.  Alternative pricing is at the discretion of the Offeror.   

4) Does FAA required additional information on CDRL & DID or it is a part of SOW. 

Response:  The CDRL and DID require the Offeror to submit  deliverables called for by the SOW in the manner, content, and format delineated.  The CDRL and DID are integral attachments to the SOW.  

5) Does FAA required CDRL & DID responses with the submission of RFP or at the time of the award. 

Response:  Submission requirements are delineated in both the SOW and CDRLs.  Some submittals are due with the proposal.  

6) When is FAA is looking to make an award on both paging and cellular.

Response:  The FAA National Wireless Program Office representatives estimate and plans a contract award by August 04/September 04 time frame. 

7)

 
a. Does the FAA have a RIM Blackberry Enterprise Server (BES) at each of

the Headquarter Locations?  

Response:  No.  The FAA is not implying or requiring any additional infrastructural investment as a part of this effort.
b. Can you supply the list of International locations where coverage may be

needed?   

Response:  The international locations for coverage are to be determined by the offeror.  Offerors should identify where there is coverage now and how they propose to meet the FAA's needs.
c. Will purchases be centrally managed out of the DC location by one point of contact? 

Response:  Purchases will be managed by the HQ, location at 800 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC  20591.  However, orders will be delivered by the successful offeror to all of the locations identified in the SOW and centrally managed. 

d. If you do have a BES at each location, do you have RIM T-Support on each of the BES? 

Response:  This question is not applicable to the wireless procurement.  See response to question 7a above. 

e. If so, what level?
Response:  This question is not applicable to the wireless procurement.  See response to question 7a above. 

f. Are you looking for a hardware maintenance on the devices that is above the manufactures standard offering? 
Response:  Offerors are free to propose any solution that they believe will provide the "best value" for the FAA's requirement as stated in the SOW.

8) Do you require in bldg coverage at the locations identified? 

Response:  The question referencing building coverage is unclear.  Is the question, does FAA require coverage at the locations identified, the answer is yes.  Does that mean the successful offeror must have a person, under their direction and employment at each location, the answer is that is up to the offeror to determine.

9) Vendor requests an extension of forty-five days to responds to the SIR due to the need to establish teaming agreements with multiple vendors that require contractual negotiations that could not be conducted prior to the release of the SIR and receipt of the SOW performance requirements. Will FAA extend the deadline for response by 45 days?

Response:  The SIR proposal submittal due date was changed to read “August 24, 2004”.  The extension via Amendment No. 3 was posted on the FAA Contract Opportunities website on July 27, 2004.  

10) Will Past Performance data be required from the prime contractor and its

subcontractors?

Response:  No, past performance data is required for the prime contractor only.  See section L.15.4.2 Part 2:  Past Performance, Section M.3.2 Past Performance Evaluation Process; Attachment L-1 Past Performance Information (pg 72-73).

11) CLIN pricing structure does not sufficiently account for technical and functional enhancements included in RFP. Will FAA provide an updated CLIN structure or will the FAA accept proposed changes to CLINs to reflect Non-Recurring Costs (NRC), Managed Network services, Emergency Services (e.g. Priority Service, Emergency Operations, Inter-Agency, Civil Air Defense, State and Local Emergency communications relay)? 

Response:  Alternate proposals are acceptable.  It is up to the offeror to determine what they will include in the all-in-rate.  The FAA is not implying or requiring any capital investment by bidders that would be FAA-specific.

12) Will FAA provide usage profiles for users by device? Will network coverage be determined by network availability or device type which will be limited by signal reception, location, etc?  

Response:  The FAA will not provide user profiles from their existing service vendors/providers.  The offeror must determine how their network coverage will be determined and provide that information in their proposal.

13) 

a. Is it FAA's requirement for bidders to include the "establishment/enhancement" of signal reception at "hard to cover" locations in the transition to the new contract?  

Response:  This is to be as proposed by the offeror.

b. "Establishment/enhancement" of service or signal reception for at and/or within locations identified in Section J, Attachment 2, would seem to indicate capital infrastructure investment. Is this the FAA's intent? 

Response:  The offeror should propose their solutions to this requirement.  The FAA is not implying or requiring any capital investment by bidders that would be FAA specific.

14) Evaluation Factors include "other task 1 SOW elements" and "planned service enhancements." Will FAA provide additional information on these areas for adequate response from potential bidders? 

Response:  See SOW Paragraph 1.3, Task 1 of the SIR.

15) Will responses tailored to individual portions/service in SIR be taken in consideration for award? E.g. will pager services be awarded separately? 

Response:  Offerors may propose any combination of solutions or teaming partners.  See SOW Paragraph 1.2.

16) Would the FAA accept Blackberry and Land Mobile Radio Managed Service

Contracts, as appropriate references of similar scope? 

Response:  Offerors are free to submit any contract examples it believes are representative of the nature of work required by this SIR.

17) 

a. Would the FAA entertain a "non-compliant" alternative proposal that would provide an "out of the box" solution to the FAA's need for Wireless Communications Devices and Services?

Response: Refer to SIR Section L, L.17 Alternate Proposals.   

b. If so, would the FAA grant a one-month extension to submit the proposal?  

Response:  The SIR proposal submittal due date was changed to read “August 24, 2004”.  The extension via Amendment No. 3 was posted on the FAA Contract Opportunities website on July 27, 2004.  

18) 

a. The FAA is guaranteeing $500,000 in the base contract period.  Is the $500,000 a total commitment based on a total of 7,770 end-users?

Response:  No.  It is the minimum being guaranteed regardless of numbers of devices.  

b. If not, what percentage of the 7,770 end-users is the FAA phasing in initially?  Long term, how does the FAA anticipate phasing in the total end-user population?  When will the FAA begin transferring service to the new carrier?

Response:  The phasing in of users from the existing carriers will be managed as joint effort with the successful offeror and the FAA’s Program Office located in the FAA’s headquarters building, 800 Independence Ave, SW, Washington, DC.  The total end-users will be phased in over a period of time that allows for a managed progression, so that there will be no disruption of service to those users.  This effort will be “worked out” after contract award.  Any end-users that are currently being served by the successful offeror should be seamless and relatively easy to accomplish.   The end-users that are not serviced by the successful offeror must be accomplished as soon as possible ensuring that no disruption of service is experienced, and within the first year of the contract performance.
c. What percentage of the total 7,770 end-users will have a need for "Enhanced Functionality?  

Response:  The total number of end-users that require enhanced functionality will most likely change as the successful offeror’s capability to provide such enhancement is determined and defined by the offeror and which is presented in their response to this SIR/SOW requirement.
d. Will all the features identified under Enhanced Functionality be the same in this sub-set of end-users?

Response:  No.
e. Historically, manufacturers change products and models to accommodate new technology.  For the purposes of maintaining inventory, Will the FAA accept “like” models for cell phone deployment?

Response:  The FAA encourages offerors to propose an inventory management plan that takes advantage of emerging technology that enhances services and includes new devices/models over time.

f. Verizon Wireless does not provide "to the second billing".  This is an invoicing method unique to one service provider.  Verizon Wireless stipulates that this requirement be removed from the Statement of Work. 

Response:  It is up to the offeror to determine how rounding of minutes will be handled in their proposal.

g. Will there be a small business plan requirement for the prime?

Response:  No.

h. What changing environment is be referenced in the SOW is it government or industry? 

Response:  Both.

i. Is there an incumbent carrier/ msp that has the majority of FAA lines? 

Response:  Not currently.
j. When FAA makes pricing assumption based on data from Standard and Poor, can you explain your interpretation of fully loaded basis? 

Response:  All devices and service features are included in the all-in-rate.  No other price features are included other than those in Section B of the SIR.  

k. Based on past results what has been the number and frequency of times when incumbent vendor was unable to support device requirements?

Response:  Varies.
l. Based on the SOW and attachments are these accurate numbers and locations where cellular service is required? 

Response:  This is the best available information that the FAA has gathered regarding locations for services to be provided.  Actual locations for service and number of devices may change over time.

m. What is the number or percentage of people that would require priority access? 

Response:  This number of users is currently not fully known.  The FAA’s requirement to serve this group will most likely expand given the solutions offered by the successful offeror’s proposal. 

19)

a. Section M.1.1, last paragraph states that "An offeror may submit only one proposal." Does this mean only one proposal as prime contractor?

Response:  An offeror may submit only one proposal as prime contractor.   However, in the event of multiple awards, an offeror may not be both prime contractor and subcontractor.

b. In the section "Task 1 - Basic Plan", Providers are asked to assume "a guaranteed minimum total price of $500,000 for the base contract period." Is the FAA guaranteeing the winning contractor a $500,000 revenue stream for the base period? 

Response:  The FAA is guaranteeing a minimum total award of $500,000, this should not be confused as a limit under any one contract.  See Clause H-10.

c. Assuming that further pricing concessions could be agreed to, would the FAA be willing to guarantee a certain number of activated wireless devices for the base period?  

Response:  No.  Guaranteed minimum number of devices will be based on FAA requirements.  This requirement may change over time and offerors must be able to accommodate such changes.  However, the inventory of current devices is offered as the starting estimate of the number of devices needed for the start-up phase.
d. The FAA goes on to describe four possible "All-In-Rate" calculations. The first is for devices and voice services.   Please define "voice services?" 

Response:  'Voice Services' includes, but is not limited to, devices that transmit and receive voice; voice mail, paging, voice commands, person to person calling, three way calling, etc.
e. Further in the same section, the FAA identifies several features that would provide "Enhanced Functionality for a sub-set of users" and go on to state that "Providers are encouraged to include multiple functionality devices." How will these enhanced features be evaluated from (1) a technical point of view and (2) from a price point of view?  

Response:  (1) Based on the number and total functionality of features proposed and (2) based on the number of features being included in the all-in-rate.
 

DTFAWA-04-R-00014

7

